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October 12, 2021          License No.: L06860 

            

Mary C. Muessle 

Director of Nuclear Materials Safety  

 

Re: Response to apparent violations in NRC Inspection Report 150-00042/2021-001  

 

Ms. Muessle,   

 

The following is BRL NDT SERVICES response to apparent violations in NRC Inspection Report 150-00042/2021-

001: 

 

Apparent Violation of 10 CFR 34.43(c)(3) 

 

Title 10 CFR 34.43(c)(3) requires, in part, that the licensee may not permit an individual 

to act as a radiographer’s assistant until the individual has demonstrated competence in 

the use of hardware described in 10 CFR 34.43(c)(2) by successful completion of a 

practical examination on the use of such hardware. 

 

Contrary to the above, on January 5 and March 6, 2021, the licensee permitted an 

individual to act as a radiographer’s assistant even though the individual had not 

demonstrated competence in the use of hardware described in 10 CFR 34.43(c)(2) by 

successful completion of a practical examination on the use of such hardware. 

Specifically, an individual was allowed to perform the function of a radiographer assistant 

during an actual radiographic operation on both of the dates above without having 

demonstrated competence in the use of equipment through a practical examination as 

required. 

 

The failure to properly train a radiographer’s assistant was identified as an apparent violation of 10 CFR 34.43(c)(3). 

(150-00042/2021-001-01) 

 

Response:  

After an internal investigation of the incident, it was determined that there was a break down in the 

communication between the RSO and the Lead Technician.   

 

Initially, BRL NDT SERVICES hired David Gillette and Shaun Pruitt to perform radiographic testing in and around the 

Nampa, Idaho area. It was determined that David Gillette and Shaun Pruitt would be the primary technicians 

performing most of the radiography. Proper hiring procedures and security check were followed. BRL NDT 

SERVICES decided it would be a good idea to hire James Gillette once he successfully completed the 40-hour 

Radiation Safety Training. Proper security checks and most of the hiring procedures were followed. A written 

examination was administered, and the practical was placed on hold since I was in Texas. The thought process 

was that since James would only be filling in when needed, I would conduct the practical examination the next 

time I was in Idaho. As time went by and my schedule remained extremely busy, I never found the time to make it 

out to Idaho. I completely forgot about James’s practical examination. I never notified the lead technician that 

James did not have a practical examination on file and that he is not to perform radiographic operations until he 

does. I accept full responsibility for the oversight and miscommunication. 
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Immediate Corrective Action: 

Notified David Gillette of the issue and ceased all radiographic operations in Idaho. Also asked that James Gillette 

not be allowed to perform any further Radiography until I can complete his training.  

 

I traveled from Texas to Idaho on April 28, 2021. Conducted the practical examination of James Gillette by having 

him demonstrate that he could assemble a radiographic exposure device and its associated equipment, crank 

the source out and in, and perform radiation surveys correctly. 

 

Long-Term Corrective Action: 

Moving forward, BRL NDT SERVICES will immediately implement a checklist (Form R-021) to help prevent this from 

happening again. The checklist will be placed in each employee’s personnel file. See Attachment #1 for an 

example of the form. 

 

 

Apparent Violation of 10 CFR 34.41(a) 

 

Title 10 CFR 34.41(a) requires, in part, that whenever radiography is performed at a 

location other than a permanent radiographic installation, the radiographer must be 

accompanied by at least one other qualified radiographer or an individual who has, at a 

minimum, met the requirements of 10 CFR 34.43(c). 

 

Contrary to the above, on January 5 and March 6, 2021, when radiography was 

performed at a location other than a permanent radiographic installation, the 

radiographer was not accompanied by at least one other qualified radiographer or an 

individual who had, at a minimum, met the requirements of 10 CFR 34.43(c). 

Specifically, an individual was allowed to perform the function of a radiographer’s 

assistant during a radiographic operation in Idaho when that person had not completed 

the training required by 10 CFR 34.43(c); consequently, the radiographer was not 

accompanied by another qualified individual as required. 

 

The failure to follow the two-person rule by allowing radiography to be performed with 

only one qualified individual present was identified as an apparent violation of 

10 CFR 34.41(a). (150-00042/2021-001-02) 

 

Response:  

After an internal investigation of the incident, it was determined that Apparent Violation of 10 CFR 34.43(c)(3) was 

the cause that led BRL NDT SERVICES to Apparent Violation of 10 CFR 34.41(a). We are very cognizant of the two-

person rule and normally operate within the requirements. I can assure you that this was an isolated incident that 

will not reoccur.   

 

Immediate Corrective Action: 

Notified David Gillette of the issue via telephone and ceased all radiographic operations in Idaho. 

 

I traveled from Texas to Idaho on April 28, 2021, to correct the issues. 

 

Long-Term Corrective Action: 

BRL NDT SERVICES is confident that the implementation of Form R-021 (Attachment #1) will assist in preventing this 

type of violation in the future.  
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Violation of 10 CFR 34.43(e)(1) 

Title 10 CFR 34.43(e)(1) requires, in part, that the licensee conduct an inspection 

program of the job performance of each radiographer during an actual industrial 

radiographic operation at intervals not to exceed 6 months. 

 

Contrary to the above from March 3, 2021, to April 28, 2021, the licensee failed to 

conduct an inspection program of the job performance of each radiographer during an 

actual industrial radiographic operation at intervals not to exceed 6 months. Specifically, 

a radiographer working in Idaho had received his 6-month field audit by the RSO of BRL 

on September 3, 2020; however, as of the date of the onsite inspection on April 22, 

2021, this radiographer had not received any further field audits, a period in excess of 6 

months, and this radiographer had participated in radiographic operations on April 15, 

2021. 

 

The failure to conduct an inspection program of the job performance of each 

radiographer during an actual industrial radiographic operation was identified as an 

apparent violation of 10 CFR 34.43(e)(1). (150-00042/2021-001-03) 

 

Response:  

After an internal investigation of the incident, it was determined that this issue was due to an oversight and a 

breakdown in the radiation safety program. BRL NDT SERVICES does not have the proper checks and balances in 

place to prevent this type of issue from happening.    

 

Immediate Corrective Action: 

Notified David Gillette of the issue via telephone and ceased all radiographic operations in Idaho. 

 

I traveled from Texas to Idaho on April 28, 2021 to perform field audits on David Gillette and Shaun Pruitt.  

 

Long-Term Corrective Action: 

BRL NDT SERVICES will implement a quarterly inspection/review of all personnel field audits upon approval of this 

corrective action. This will ensure that the field audits are being performed on or prior to the 6-month requirement. 

The inspection will be tracked using Form R-022 (Attachment #2).  

 

BRL NDT SERVICES is confident that the implementation of Form R-022 (Attachment #2) will assist in preventing this 

type of violation in the future.  

 

In closing, I would like to thank you for bringing these important matters to our attention. The safety of our 

employees is very important to our company. I can assure you that BRL NDT SERVICES is taking this very seriously. 

BRL NDT SERVICES also views this as an opportunity to learn from our mistakes and improve our Radiation Safety 

Program.    

 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or concerns. 

 

Thanks   

 

 
 

Virgil Martinez 

President/ RSO 
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ATTACHMENT #1 
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ATTACHMENT #2 

 

 

 

 


